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 Defendant, DEL MONTE FOODS, CO. (“Del Monte”), by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files the following Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Plaintiffs’ unverified Fourth 

Amended Class Action Complaint (“Complaint”).  The term “Plaintiffs” as used herein refers to 

the named Plaintiffs individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated.  Del Monte 

responds to the Complaint as follows:  

I. 

DEL MONTE’S ANSWER 

INTRODUCTION 

 
 1. Admitted in part, denied in part.  Del Monte admits generally that Plaintiffs have 

initiated a purported class action.  Del Monte specifically denies that any pet food or treats 

manufactured, produced, marketed, distributed or sold by it were materially different from what 

was advertised, failed to provide Plaintiffs with a benefit, or harmed Plaintiffs’ pets.  Del Monte 

has insufficient knowledge to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 1 of the 

Complaint and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

 2. Denied.  Del Monte specifically denies each and every allegation contained in 

Paragraph 2 of the Complaint.   

PARTIES 

3. Denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 3 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

 4. Denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 4 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 
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   5. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 5 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

   6. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 6 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

7. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 7 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

8. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 8 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

9. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 9 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

10. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 10 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

 11. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 11 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 
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   12. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 12 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

13. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

 14. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

   15. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 15 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

16. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 16 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

17. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 17 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

18. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 18 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 
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19. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 19 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

20. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 20 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

21. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 21 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

22. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 22 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

23. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 23 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

24. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 24 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

25. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 25 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 
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26. Denied.   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 26 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

27. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 27 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

28. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 28 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

29. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 29 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

30. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 30 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

31. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 31 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. 

32. Denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

the allegations contained in Paragraph 32 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation.   

Case 1:07-cv-21221-CMA     Document 367     Entered on FLSD Docket 05/12/2008     Page 6 of 59




 

 

CASE NO. 07-21221-CIV-ALTONAGA/BROWN 
DEFENDANT DEL MONTE FOODS, Co.'S ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO THE FOURTH 

AMENDED COMPLAINT, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

7 

DEFENDANTS 

33. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 33 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 33 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.   

 34.  Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 34 are not directed to Del 

Monte, and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, 

it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 34 of 

the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

35. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 35 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 35 and 

footnote 1 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

 36. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 36 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 36 and 

footnote 2 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

37. Admitted in part, denied in part.  At to the allegations contained in paragraph 37 

of the Complaint, Del Monte admits only that it is a Delaware corporation with its principal 

place of business in California;   that it manufactures, produces, markets, distributes, advertises 

and/or sells dog and cat food and treats available for purchase in Florida and nationwide during 

the class period; that it conducts business in Florida and places pet food products in the stream of 

commerce that reach Florida consumers; that it values the confidence of it customers and 
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consumers; and, that Exhibit “6” of the Complaint was part of Del Monte’s website.  Exhibit 6 of 

the Complaint is a document, the contents of which speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' 

characterization of the contents of the document are specifically denied.  Except as expressly 

admitted herein, Del Monte specifically denies each and every one of the remaining allegations 

in Paragraph 37 of the Complaint.   

38. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 38 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 38 and 

footnote 3 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

39. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 39 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 39 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

40. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 40 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 40 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation 

 41. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 41 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 41 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation 

 42. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 42 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 
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sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 42 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation 

43. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 43 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied. To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 43 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation  

 44. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 44 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 44 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

45. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 45 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 45 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

46. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 46 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 46 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation  

47. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 47 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 
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to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 47 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

48. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 48 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 

to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 48 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

49. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 49 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 

to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 49 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

50. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 50 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 

to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 50 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

51. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" and "Defendants" in Paragraph 51 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte 

is deemed to be referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every 
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such allegation pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers” and “Defendants.” Del Monte lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 51 

of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

52. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" and "Defendants" in Paragraph 52 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte 

is deemed to be referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every 

such allegation pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers” and “Defendants.”  Del Monte lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 52 

of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

53. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 53 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 

information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 53 of the Complaint, and 

therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

54. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 54 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”    Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 

information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 54 of the Complaint, and 

therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

55. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 55 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 
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referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”   Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 

to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 55 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

56. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 56 of the Complaint and to the extent Del Monte is deemed to be 

referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation 

pertaining to “Defendant Manufacturers.”  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information 

to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 56 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 57. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 57 of the Complaint are conclusions of law, 

to which no response is required; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any allegations of 

this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 

information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 57 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

 58. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 58 of the Complaint are conclusions of law, 

to which no response is required; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any allegations of 

this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 

information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 58 of the Complaint, and therefore 

denies each and every such allegation. 

59. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the allegations of paragraph 59 of 

the Complaint, it is admitted only that for purposes of this suit, Del Monte submits to the 
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personal jurisdiction of this Court.  It is specifically denied that Del Monte committed a tortious 

act within the State or caused injury to persons or property within the State.  The remaining 

allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law to which no response is required.  To the 

extent any allegations of this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature, they are specifically 

denied.  To the extent the allegations of this paragraph are directed to Defendants other than Del 

Monte, Del Monte is without sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations, and 

therefore, they are denied. 

60. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 60 of the Complaint are conclusions of law 

to which no response is required.  To the extent the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to 

be factual in nature and to the extent any allegations generically referring to "Defendants" is 

deemed to apply to Del Monte, Del Monte admits only that it has marketed, advertised and sold 

commercial pet food in this District, but specifically denies that any misrepresentations, 

deceptive practices, omissions or injuries giving rise to a claim against it occurred here, and 

denies each and every of the remaining allegations of paragraph 60.  To the extent the allegations 

of this paragraph are directed to Defendants other than Del Monte, Del Monte is without 

sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations, and therefore, they are denied.  

FACTS GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIMS 

 61. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the allegations of paragraph 61 of 

the Complaint, it is admitted only that the pet food and treat industry is a substantial industry in 

the United States, that many companion cats and dogs in the United States are fed commercial 

pet food, and that Del Monte pet food provides nutrition to those pets.  Del Monte does not 

possess sufficient knowledge or information to accurately admit or deny the remaining 

allegations in Paragraph 61 of the Complaint, and therefore, they are denied.  
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 62. Admitted in part, denied in part. With regard to the allegations directed 

generically to "Defendant Manufacturers" in Paragraph 62 of the Complaint and to the extent Del 

Monte is referred to in these allegations, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such 

allegation.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny any remaining 

allegations in Paragraph 62, particularly to the extent they refer to other Defendants or Plaintiffs; 

and therefore, they are denied.  Del Monte admits, however, that it has invested resources to 

build the confidence of its consumers and customers and values that confidence.  

 63. Denied. With regard to the allegations directed to generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 63 of the Complaint, Del Monte denies each and every such 

allegation.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining 

allegations in Paragraph 63 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such 

allegation. 

64. Denied.  With regard to the allegations directed generically to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" in Paragraph 64 of the Complaint, Del Monte denies each and every such 

allegation.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining 

allegations in Paragraph 64 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such 

allegation. 

65. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 66 of the Complaint do not refer to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To 

the extent any allegations of this paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are 

specifically denied.  Del Monte does not possess knowledge or information sufficient to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations of this paragraph to the extent they refer to other 

Defendants and/or to Plaintiffs; and therefore all such allegation are denied. 
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66. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 66 of the Complaint are improper in that 

they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By 

way of further response, the compound allegations of this paragraph do not refer to any particular 

Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to the allegations directed 

generically to "Defendant Manufacturers" in Paragraph 66 of the Complaint, and to the extent 

Del Mont is included in that group, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such 

allegation.  To the extent the allegations of this paragraph are directed to other defendants, Del 

Monte is not required to answer and does not possess information and knowledge sufficient to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and therefore, denies them.  By way of further response, 

Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 

 67. Denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendants" and 

“Defendant Manufacturers” refer to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every allegation 

contained in Paragraph 67 of the Complaint.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 

information to admit or deny the allegations of this paragraph to the extent they refer to other 

defendants and, therefore, they are denied. 

 68. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the allegations of paragraph 68 of 

the Complaint, To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendant Manufacturers" are 

directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  Many of the 

allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, and as such, no response is required.  As to 

the allegations concerning other “Defendant Manufactures”, such allegations are not directed to 

Del Monte; and therefore, Del Monte is not required to respond.  To the extent Del Monte is 

required to respond to allegations concerning other Defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 68 of the 
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Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  Del Monte admits only, 

however, that its pet food and treat labels comply with applicable rules and regulations. 

69. Denied.  With regard to the allegations of paragraph 69 of the Complaint, to the 

extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendant Manufacturers" are directed to Del Monte, 

Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  Many of the allegations of this 

paragraph are conclusions of law, and as such, no response is required.  As to the allegations 

concerning other “Defendant Manufactures”, such allegations are not directed to Del Monte; and 

therefore, Del Monte is not required to respond.  To the extent such allegations are directed to 

Del Monte, they are denied.  To the extent Del Monte is required to respond to allegations 

concerning other Defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or 

deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 69 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and 

every such allegation. 

70. Denied.  The allegations in this paragraph do not pertain to Del Monte; and 

therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph refer to 

Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 70 of the 

Complaint.  To the extent Del Monte is required to respond to allegations concerning other 

Defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining 

allegations in Paragraph 70 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such 

allegation. 

71. Denied.  With regard to the allegations of Paragraph 71 of the Complaint, the 

allegations in this paragraph do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

To the extent Del Monte is required to respond to allegations concerning other Defendants, Del 

Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in 
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Paragraph 68 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  To the 

extent any of the allegations of this paragraph refer to Del Monte, Del Monte denies the 

characterization of any such statement or alleged omission contained in Paragraph 71 of the 

Complaint and therefore denies all such allegations.  As to the allegations concerning Plaintiffs’ 

reliance upon any identified and unidentified statements, Del Monte does not have sufficient 

knowledge or information to accurately admit or deny such allegations and therefore denies 

them.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable 

regulations and requirements. 

72. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 72 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 72 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

73. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 73 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 73 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

74.  Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 74 are not directed to Del 

Monte, and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required 

by Del Monte, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the 

allegations in Paragraph 74 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such 

allegation. 

75. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 75 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 
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lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 75 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

 76. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 76 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 76 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

77. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 77 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 77 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

78. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 78 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 78 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

79. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 79 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 79 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

80. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the allegations of Paragraph 80 

of the Complaint, Del Monte specifically denies that any of its statements are “deceptive” as 

alleged in this paragraph; Del Monte also specifically denies that any competent scientific 

evidence exists that "dry cat food" is "detrimental” to the health of cats.  By way of further 

response, Exhibit 19 is a written document, the contents of which speak for themselves.  

Case 1:07-cv-21221-CMA     Document 367     Entered on FLSD Docket 05/12/2008     Page 18 of 59




 

 

CASE NO. 07-21221-CIV-ALTONAGA/BROWN 
DEFENDANT DEL MONTE FOODS, Co.'S ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO THE FOURTH 

AMENDED COMPLAINT, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

19 

Plaintiffs’ characterization of the contents of Exhibit 19 is specifically denied. Exhibit 20 is a 

written document, the contents of which speak for themselves.  Plaintiffs’ characterization of the 

contents of Exhibit 20 is specifically denied.  Exhibit 21 is a written document, the contents of 

which speak for themselves.  Plaintiffs’ characterization of the contents of Exhibit 21 is 

specifically denied.  Exhibit 22 does not apply to Del Monte.    Del Monte admits, however, that 

it uses safe and appropriate ingredients in its pet food, including 9 Lives brand dry cat food.  The 

remaining allegations of this paragraph are specifically denied.  By way of further response, Del 

Monte’s labeling complies with applicable regulations and requirements. 

81. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 81 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendants" are 

directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  To the extent 

that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining allegations, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 81 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

 82. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 82 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendants" are 

directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  To the extent 

that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining allegations, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 82 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

 83. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 83 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendant 

Manufacturers" are directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as 
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stated.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining 

allegations, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in 

Paragraph 83 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

 84. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 84 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 84 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

85. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 85 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendants” are 

directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  To the extent 

that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining allegations, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 85 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

86.  Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 86 are not directed to Del 

Monte, and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to 

"Defendants” are directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as 

stated.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining 

allegations, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in 

Paragraph 86 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

87. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 87 are not directed to Del Monte, 

and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to "Defendants” are 

directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as stated.  To the extent 

that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining allegations, it lacks 
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sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 87 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

88.   Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 88 are not directed to Del 

Monte, and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent the generic allegations directed to 

"Defendants” are directed to Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation as 

stated.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte as to the remaining 

allegations, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in 

Paragraph 88 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

89. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 89 are not directed to Del Monte; 

and therefore no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations in paragraph 89 are 

deemed to pertain to Del Monte, Del Monte specifically denies distributing, marketing, advertise 

and or selling commercial pet food that is manufactured and produced by Menu Food.  To the 

extent any remaining allegations of Paragraph 89 are deemed to apply to Del Monte, Del Monte 

specifically denies all such allegations.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del 

Monte as to the allegations pertaining to other Defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge 

or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 89 of the Complaint; and therefore 

Del Monte denies each and every such allegation.  

90. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the generic allegations of 

Paragraph 90 of the Complaint directed to “Defendants” and to the extent any allegations refer to 

Del Monte, Del Monte denies each and every such allegation.  With regard to allegations against 

other defendants in this paragraph, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit 

or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  Del Monte also denies the definition 

applied to the word “co-packing” but admits that certain benefits to the consumer and 
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manufacturer may be derived from co-packing arrangements.  Del Monte denies all remaining 

allegations of this paragraph. 

91. Admitted in part, denied in part.  With regard to the allegations contained in 

Paragraph 91 of the Complaint, Del Monte admits only that it has purchased some ingredients for 

its pet food products from rendering companies, but deny that those ingredients constituted 

“inedible waste”, were tainted, or were devoid of nutritious contents.  With regard to the generic 

allegations directed to “Defendants” and to the extent they refer to Del Monte, Del Monte denies 

each and every such allegation.  With regard to allegations against other defendants, Del Monte 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in 

Paragraph 91 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  By way of 

further response, Del Monte’s pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and 

requirements. 

92.  Admitted in part, denied in part.  The allegations of  Paragraph 92 of the 

Complaint are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and 

therefore, no response is required.  However, to the extent the allegations refer to Del Monte, 

such allegations are specifically denied, except, however, that Del Monte admits that it uses by 

products, as defined by AAFCO, in certain of its products.  To the extent the allegations pertain 

to other defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny such 

allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food 

and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 

93. Denied.  The allegations of  Paragraph 93 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations  refer to Del Monte, such allegations are specifically 
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denied.  To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By 

way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations 

and requirements. 

94. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 94 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations refer to Del Monte, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By 

way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations 

and requirements. 

95. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 95 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations  refer to Del Monte, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants, Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By 

way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations 

and requirements. 

96. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 96 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations generically allege that euthanized cats and dogs and 

pentobarbital are specifically contained in Del Monte pet food, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  By way of further response, Exhibits 30 and 31 are written documents, the contents of 
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which speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' characterization of the contents of these documents is 

specifically denied. To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants, Del Monte lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are 

denied.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable 

regulations and requirements. 

97.  Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 97 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations generically allege that euthanized cats and dogs and 

pentobarbital are specifically contained in Del Monte pet food, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  By way of further response, Exhibits 31 and 32 are written documents, the contents of 

which speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' characterization of the contents of these documents is 

specifically denied. To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants or to matters not 

specifically denied, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny such 

allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food 

and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 

98. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 98 of the Complaint are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations generically allege that euthanized cats and dogs and 

pentobarbital are specifically contained in Del Monte pet food, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  By way of further response, Exhibit 33 is a written document, the contents of which 

speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' characterization of the contents of these documents is 

specifically denied.  To the extent the allegations pertain to Plaintiffs' reliance or actions or to 

other defendants or to matters not specifically denied, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or 
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information to admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By way of further 

response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and 

requirements. 

99. Denied.  Del Monte denies each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 99 of 

the Complaint.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with 

applicable regulations and requirements. 

100.  Admitted in part, denied in part..  The allegations of Paragraph 100 are not 

directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response 

is required.  Del Monte admits, however, that certain of its pet foods contain certain natural 

and/or synthetic preservatives. To the extent the allegations of this paragraph generally disparage 

"Defendants' pet food" and allege toxins in Del Monte's pet food in particular, such allegations 

are specifically denied, as are all other allegations in this paragraph to the extent same are 

asserted against Del. Monte.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or 

deny allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.   Finally, , Exhibits 34 and 

35 are written documents, the contents of which speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' characterization 

of such documents is specifically denied.  Moreover, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply 

with applicable regulations and requirements.  

101. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 101 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations of this paragraph refer to Del Monte, such allegations are 

specifically denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.   By way of further response, Del 

Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 
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102. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 102 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations of this paragraph refer to Del Monte, such allegations are 

specifically denied. By way of further response, Exhibit 34 is a written document, the contents of 

which speak for themselves; Plaintiffs' characterization of such document is specifically denied.  

Moreover, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with  applicable regulations and 

requirements.  

103.  Admitted in part, denied in part.  The allegations of Paragraph 103 of the 

Complaint are improper in that they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each 

defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By way of further response, the compound allegations of 

this paragraph do not refer or pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to the allegations 

directed generically to "Defendant Manufacturers" or "Defendants", and to the extent Del Monte 

is included in that group, Del Monte specifically denies each and every such allegation, although 

admits that pet food products have been the subject of recalls over the years. Del Monte 

specifically denies that their products are not safe, healthy, wholesome or nutritious.  By way of 

further response, Exhibit 34 is a written document, the contents of which speak for themselves; 

Plaintiffs' characterization of such document is specifically denied.   To the extent the allegations 

of this paragraph are directed to other defendants, Del Monte is not required to answer and does 

not possess information and knowledge sufficient to accurately admit or deny the allegations 

and, therefore, denies them.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling 

comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 

104. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 104 are not directed to any particular 

Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  However, to 
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the extent the allegations of this paragraph refer to Del Monte, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny allegations 

directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.    

 105. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 105 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent the allegations refer to Del Monte, such allegations are specifically 

denied.  To the extent the allegations pertain to other defendants or plaintiffs' alleged reliance 

upon any marketing or advertising, Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to 

admit or deny such allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  By way of further response, Del 

Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements.  

106. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 106 are not directed to any particular 

Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  However, to 

the extent the allegations generically disparage "Defendant Manufacturers" and to the extent Del 

Monte is subject to those allegations, they are specifically denied.    Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, 

denies them.    

107.  Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 107 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte, but pertain solely to the mindset of Plaintiffs.  To the extent that a 

response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit 

or deny the allegations in Paragraph 107 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every 

such allegation. By way of a further response, Del Monte denies that it has misrepresented the 

nature, character, content or quality of its pet food. 
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108. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 108 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 108 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.   Del Monte lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, 

denies them.    

109. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 109 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law to which no response is required; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any 

allegations of this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature, they are not directed to any 

particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

However, to the extent any factual allegations of this paragraph refer to Del Monte, such 

allegations are specifically denied. Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit 

or deny allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.     By way of further 

response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and 

requirements. 

110. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 110 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required and Del Monte does not have information 

sufficient to admit or deny the accuracy of such allegations.  To the extent any factual allegation 

in this paragraph is deemed to pertain to Del Monte, it is specifically denied.  In particular, the 

characterizations of the activities and roles of the various trade organizations mentioned in this 

paragraph are specifically denied.    
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

111. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 111 of Complaint are conclusions of law, to 

which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed 

to factual in nature, they are denied.  

 112. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 112 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.   

113. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 113 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.  By way of further response, it is specifically denied 

that there are numerous members of a similarly situated class. 

114. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 114 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.   

115. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 115 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.  

116. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 116 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.   

117. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 117 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied. 
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118. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 118 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law and/or a prayer for relief, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the 

allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.  

119. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 119 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they denied.  

120. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 120 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they denied.  

121. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 121 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.  

122. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 122 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied. 

123. Admitted in part, denied in part.  Regarding the allegations of Paragraph 123 of 

the Complaint, it is admitted only that Del Monte is represented by competent and diligent 

counsel and, upon information and belief, collectively with other Defendants have a majority of 

the market share of the pet food and treat manufacturing industry.  The remaining allegations of 

this paragraph are conclusions of law to which no response is required; and therefore, they are 

denied.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to be factual, they are 

denied. 
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124. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 124 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are denied. 

125. Denied.  The allegations of  Paragraph 125 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law and/or prayer for relief, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the 

allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual in nature, they are denied.  

COUNT I 

126. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 126, Del Monte 

incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 through 125 of Plaintiffs’ 

Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, Plaintiffs' attempt to 

generically incorporate allegations under "other state fraudulent misrepresentation and 

concealment laws of the various states where the Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 8 of 

the Complaint is improper, and represents a conclusion of law to which no response is required; 

and therefore, it is denied.   

127.  Admitted in part; denied in part.  With regard to Paragraph 127 of the Complaint, 

it is admitted only, that to extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" applies 

to Del Monte, Del Monte manufactured, distributed, marketed, promoted, advertised and sold pet 

food in the United States during the class period.  The remaining allegations of this paragraph do 

not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not have sufficient information by which to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, they are denied. 

128. Admitted in part; denied in part.  With regard to Paragraph 128 of the Complaint, 

it is admitted only that to the extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" 

applies to Del Monte, certain retailers sold Del Monte pet food during the class period.  The 
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remaining allegations of this paragraph do not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not 

have sufficient information by which to accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, 

they are denied. 

129. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 129 of the Complaint are improper in that 

they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By 

way of further response, the compound allegations of this paragraph do not refer to any particular 

Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to the allegations directed 

generically to "Defendants", and to the extent Del Monte is included in that group, Del Monte 

specifically denies each and every such allegation.   To the extent any of the generic allegations 

against "Defendants" in this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature and to pertain to Del 

Monte, they are specifically denied.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and 

labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 

130. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 130 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they 

are specifically denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 

allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.   By way of further response, Del 

Monte pet food complies with applicable guidelines and regulations. 

131. Denied.  The allegations of  Paragraph 131 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  

To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they 

are specifically denied.  Del Monte lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny 
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allegations directed at other parties and, therefore, denies them.   By way of further response, Del 

Monte pet food complies with applicable guidelines and regulations. 

132. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 132 of the Complaint are not directed to 

any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte, but rather characterize the state of 

mind of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is required and Del Monte does not have sufficient 

information upon which to base a belief as to the accuracy of the allegations; and therefore, they 

are denied.  

133. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, to which no 

response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual 

in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and 

therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are 

deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

134. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, to which no 

response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual 

in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and 

therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are 

deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper. 

COUNT II 

135. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 135, Del Monte 

incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 through 134 of Plaintiffs’ 
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Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, Plaintiffs' attempt to 

generically incorporate allegations under "other state negligent misrepresentation laws of the 

various states where the Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 9 of the Complaint is 

improper, and represents a conclusion of law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is 

denied.   

136. Admitted in part; denied in part.  With regard to Paragraph 136 of the Complaint, 

it is admitted only, that to extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" applies 

to Del Monte, Del Monte manufactured, distributed, marketed, promoted, advertised and sold pet 

food in the United States during the class period.  The remaining allegations of this paragraph do 

not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not have sufficient information by which to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, denies them. 

137. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 137 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 137 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation and, therefore, denies them 

138. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 138 of the Complaint are improper in that 

they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By 

way of further response, the compound allegations of this paragraph do not refer to any particular 

Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to the allegations directed 

generically to "Defendants", and to the extent Del Monte is included in that group, Del Monte 

specifically denies each and every such allegation. By way of further response, Del Monte's pet 

food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and requirements. 
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139. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 139 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

140. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 140 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

141. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph of the Complaint are conclusions of law, to 

which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed 

to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del 

Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

142. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 142 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte, but rather characterize the state of mind of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is 

required and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to 

the accuracy of the allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  

143. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph of the Complaint are conclusions of law, to 

which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed 
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to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del 

Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper. 

COUNT III 

144. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 144 of the 

Complaint, Del Monte incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 

through 143 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, 

Plaintiffs' attempt to generically incorporate allegations under "other state deceptive trade 

practices laws of the various states where Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 10 is 

improper, and represents a conclusion of law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is 

denied.   

145. Admitted in part; denied in part.  With regard to Paragraph 145 of the Complaint, 

it is admitted only, that to extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" applies 

to Del Monte, Del Monte manufactured, distributed, marketed, promoted, advertised and sold pet 

food in the United States during the class period.  The remaining allegations of this paragraph do 

not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not have sufficient information by which to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, they are denied. 

146. Admitted in part; denied in part.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 146 are 

not directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it 

lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 146 of 

Case 1:07-cv-21221-CMA     Document 367     Entered on FLSD Docket 05/12/2008     Page 36 of 59




 

 

CASE NO. 07-21221-CIV-ALTONAGA/BROWN 
DEFENDANT DEL MONTE FOODS, Co.'S ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO THE FOURTH 

AMENDED COMPLAINT, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

37 

the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  Del Monte admits, however, 

that certain retailers market and sell its pet food throughout the United States.   

147. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 147 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

148. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 148 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

149.   Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 149 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

150. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 150 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 
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151. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 151 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

152. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, to which no 

response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual 

in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and 

therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are 

deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied.  By way of further response, 

Plaintiffs' incorporation of legal citations in footnote 11 is improper and do not constitute proper 

allegations; they are conclusions of law to which no response is required, and therefore, they are 

denied. 

153. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, to which no 

response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual 

in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte, but 

rather characterize the mind set and status of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is required 

and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to the 

accuracy of the allegations; therefore, they are denied. 

154. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law, to which no 

response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are deemed to factual 

in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain to Del Monte; and 
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therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this paragraph are 

deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied.  

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper. 

COUNT IV 

 
155. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 155 of the 

Complaint , Del Monte incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 

through 154 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, 

Plaintiffs' attempt to generically incorporate allegations under "other state negligence laws of the 

various states where Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 12 is improper, and represents a 

conclusion of law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is denied. 

156. Admitted in part; denied in part.  As to Paragraph 145 of the Complaint, it is 

admitted only, that to extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" applies to 

Del Monte, Del Monte manufactured, distributed, marketed, promoted, advertised and sold pet 

food in the United States during the class period.  The remaining allegations of this paragraph do 

not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not have sufficient information by which to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, they are denied. Del Monte admits, 

however, that certain retailers market and sell its pet food throughout the United States. 

157. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 157 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 
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to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

158. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 158 of the Complaint are improper in that 

they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By 

way of further response, the allegations of this paragraph do not refer to any particular Defendant 

and do not pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to allegations directed generically to 

"Defendants", and to the extent Del Mont is included in that group, Del Monte specifically 

denies each and every such allegation, which are comprised primarily of conclusions of law.  To 

the extent any of the generic allegations against "Defendants" in this paragraph are deemed to be 

factual in nature and to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied.  By way of further 

response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling comply with applicable regulations and 

requirements.  

159. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 159 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied.   

160. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 160 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 
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161. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 161 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper. 

COUNT V 

162. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 162, Del Monte 

incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 through 161 of Plaintiffs’ 

Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, Plaintiffs' attempt to 

generically incorporate allegations under "other state strict liability laws of the various states 

where Class members reside" in footnote 13 is improper, and represents a conclusion of law to 

which no response is required; and therefore, it is denied. 

163. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 163 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte, but rather characterize the activities of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is 

required and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to 

the accuracy of the allegations; therefore, they are denied. 

164. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 164 of the Complaint are improper in that 

they fail to differentiate conduct complained of by each defendant in violation of Rule 8(b).  By 
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way of further response, the allegations of this paragraph do not refer to any particular Defendant 

and do not pertain to Del Monte specifically.  With regard to allegations directed generically to 

"Defendants", and to the extent Del Mont is included in that group, Del Monte specifically 

denies each and every such allegation.  To the extent any of the generic allegations against 

"Defendants" in this paragraph are deemed to be factual in nature and to pertain to Del Monte, 

they are specifically denied.  By way of further response, Del Monte's pet food and labeling 

comply with applicable regulations and requirements.  

165. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 165 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper.  

COUNT VI 

166. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 166, Del Monte 

incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 through 165 of Plaintiffs’ 

Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, Plaintiffs' attempt to 

generically incorporate allegations under "other state breach of warranty laws of the various 

states where Class members reside" in footnote 14 is improper, and represents a conclusion of 

law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is denied. 
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167. – 173. Denied.  The allegations in this Count of the Complaint are not directed to 

Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks sufficient 

knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in this Count of the Complaint, and 

therefore denies each and every such allegation.  

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper.  

COUNT VII 

174. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 174 of the 

Complaint, Del Monte incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 

through 173 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, 

Plaintiffs' attempt to generically incorporate allegations under "other state breach of express 

warranty laws of the various states where Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 15 is 

improper, and represents a conclusion of law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is 

denied. 

175. Admitted in part; denied in part.   The allegations contained in Paragraph 175 of 

the Complaint are not directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required 

by Del Monte, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in 

Paragraph 175 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation.  Del 

Monte admits, however, that certain retailers sell its pet food throughout the United States. 

176. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 176 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 
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sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 176 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

177. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 177 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 177 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

178. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 178 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 178 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

179. Denied.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 179 of the Complaint are not 

directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required by Del Monte, it lacks 

sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in Paragraph 179 of the 

Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper.  

COUNT VIII 

180. In response to each and every allegation contained in Paragraph 180 of the 

Complaint, Del Monte incorporates by reference each of its above responses to paragraphs 1 

through 179 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as if fully restated herein.  By way of further response, 

Plaintiffs' attempt to generically incorporate allegations under "other state unjust enrichment 
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laws of the various states where Plaintiff Class members reside" in footnote 16 is improper, and 

represents a conclusion of law to which no response is required; and therefore, it is denied. 

181. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 181 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

182. Admitted in part; denied in part.  With regard to Paragraph 182 of the Complaint, 

it is admitted only, that to extent the allegation pertaining to "Defendant Manufacturers" applies 

to Del Monte, Del Monte manufactured, distributed, marketed, promoted, advertised and sold pet 

food in the United States during the class period.  The remaining allegations of this paragraph do 

not pertain to Del Monte; and Del Monte does not have sufficient information by which to 

accurately admit or deny the allegations and, therefore, denies them. 

183. Admitted in part; denied in part.  The allegations contained in Paragraph 183 of 

the Complaint are not directed to Del Monte.  To the extent that a response is deemed required 

by Del Monte, it lacks sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations in 

Paragraph 183 of the Complaint, and therefore denies each and every such allegation., however, 

Del Monte admits that it sold pet food throughout the United States through certain retailers. 

184. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 184 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte, but rather characterize the activities of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is 

required and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to 
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the accuracy of the allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any of the 

allegations of Paragraph 184 refer to Del Monte, they are denied. 

185. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 185 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte; and therefore, no response is required.  To the extent any factual allegations in this 

paragraph are deemed to pertain to Del Monte, they are specifically denied. 

186. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 186 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte, but rather characterize the mind set of Plaintiffs; and therefore, no response is 

required and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to 

the accuracy of the allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any of the 

allegations of Paragraph 186 refer to Del Monte, they are denied. 

187. Denied.  The allegations of Paragraph 187 of the Complaint are conclusions of 

law, to which no response is required.  To the extent any of the allegations of this paragraph are 

deemed to factual in nature, they are not directed to any particular Defendant and do not pertain 

to Del Monte, but rather characterize the Plaintiffs' legal positions; and therefore, no response is 

required and Del Monte does not have sufficient information upon which to base a belief as to 

the accuracy of the allegations; and therefore, they are denied.  To the extent any of the 

allegations of Paragraph 186 refer to Del Monte, they are denied. 

188. Denied.  The allegations of this paragraph are conclusions of law and/or prayer 

for relief to which no response is required; and therefore, they are denied.   
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WHEREFORE, Del Monte demands judgment in its favor and against Plaintiffs, 

dismissing the claims in this Complaint and for such other and further relief as this Court deems 

just and proper.  

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

 

First Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs lack standing to assert the claims alleged in the Complaint. 

Second Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by the applicable statutes of limitations or repose, the 

doctrine of laches and are otherwise untimely. 

Third Affirmative Defense 

Venue for Plaintiffs’ claims is improper in this District. 

Fourth Affirmative Defense 

The Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, fails to state a claim 

upon which relief can be granted. 

Fifth Affirmative Defense 

The claims are barred, in whole or in part, because Plaintiffs and/or Plaintiffs’ claims 

have not been properly joined in this action. 

Sixth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the application of res judicata and/or 

collateral estoppel. 

Seventh Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, because the claims are not recognized as 

separate causes of action under applicable law. 

Case 1:07-cv-21221-CMA     Document 367     Entered on FLSD Docket 05/12/2008     Page 47 of 59




 

 

CASE NO. 07-21221-CIV-ALTONAGA/BROWN 
DEFENDANT DEL MONTE FOODS, Co.'S ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO THE FOURTH 

AMENDED COMPLAINT, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

48 

Eighth Affirmative Defense 

.Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by the doctrine of waiver. 

Ninth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of accord and 

satisfaction and/or by the doctrine of release. 

Tenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs fail to allege fraud with requisite particularity and fail to allege sufficient 

ultimate facts to support any finding the Del Monte, its officers, agents, servants, employees, 

contractors or others for whom it was responsible, made any fraudulent misrepresentations or 

omissions or engaged in any conduct with the requisite scienter or state of mind. 

Eleventh Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are preempted in accordance with the Supremacy Clause of the United 

States Constitution and by federal law. 

Twelfth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, because the products at issue, including 

any and all labels and/or warnings, complied with federal and/or state law, codes, statutes, rules, 

regulations and/or standards. 

Thirteenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiff’s claims are barred, in whole or in part, because the conduct at issue, including 

any and all advertising, marketing and/or labeling, was required or specifically permitted by 

federal and/or state law, codes, statutes, rules, regulations or standards. 

Fourteenth Affirmative Defense 
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Plaintiffs’ claims are barred because the products at issue were designed, tested, 

manufactured, and labeled in accordance with the state of the art industry standards existing at 

the time of the sale. 

Fifteenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred because the products at issue included adequate information 

with respect to their contents and proper use. 

Sixteenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred because Del Monte satisfied their duty to warn under the 

learned intermediary doctrine. 

Seventeenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred because no false or misleading representations were made by 

Del Monte to Plaintiffs or to the public at large with respect to Del Monte’s products. 

Eighteenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the defenses available under the 

consumer protection, deceptive practices, product liability and/or strict liability statutes of the 

several states. 

Nineteenth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ consumer protection and/or deceptive practices claims are barred because the 

state statutes upon which Plaintiffs’ claims are based are unconstitutional as applied in this 

action. 

Twentieth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by Del Monte’s First Amendment rights to commercial 

speech. 
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Twenty-first Affirmative Defense 

If Plaintiffs sustained damages as alleged in the Complaint, which is denied, such 

damages were caused, in whole or in part, by Plaintiffs’ own negligence or fault and thus, under 

the doctrine of contributory negligence, are not recoverable. 

Twenty-second Affirmative Defense 

If Plaintiffs sustained damages as alleged in the Complaint, which is denied, such 

damages were caused, in whole or in part, by Plaintiffs’ own negligence or fault and/or by the 

negligence or fault of persons or entities other than Del Monte.  Thus, under the doctrine of 

comparative fault, Plaintiffs’ recovery against Del Monte must be diminished by that percentage 

of negligence or fault attributable to Plaintiffs and/or persons or entities other than Del Monte. 

Twenty-third Affirmative Defense 

If Plaintiffs sustained damages as alleged in the Complaint, which is denied, such 

damages were caused, in whole or in part, by Plaintiffs’ misuse of the products at issue. 

Twenty-fourth Affirmative Defense 

If Plaintiffs sustained damages as alleged in the Complaint, which is denied, Plaintiffs 

failed to mitigate their damages and any recovery is to be diminished by the degree of said 

failure to mitigate. 

Twenty-fifth Affirmative Defense 

If Plaintiffs sustained damages as alleged in the Complaint, which is denied, Plaintiffs’ 

recovery is limited by the statutory caps on non-economic damages that exist under applicable 

law. 

Twenty-sixth Affirmative Defense 
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To the extent Plaintiffs seek punitive damages for conduct which allegedly caused 

injuries asserted in the Complaint, punitive damages are barred or reduced by applicable law or 

statute or, in the alternative, are unconstitutional insofar as they violate Del Monte’s 

constitutional rights under the United States Constitution and/or the constitutions of the 50 states. 

Twenty-seventh Affirmative Defense 

Del Monte adopts and incorporates by reference any affirmative defenses asserted by any 

other Defendant to this action to the extent such affirmative defenses apply to Del Monte.  

Twenty-eighth Affirmative Defense 

Del Monte is entitled to the benefits of all defenses and presumptions contained in or 

arising from any Uniform Commercial Code provisions enacted by the State of Florida. 

Twenty-ninth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs are barred from any remedy under U.C.C. §2-607(3) because Plaintiffs accepted 

Defendants’ products and failed to notify Defendants of the breach within a reasonable time after 

Plaintiffs discovered or should have discovered the breach. 

Thirtieth Affirmative Defense 

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by federal preemption because any advertising of Del 

Monte’s products complies with the rules and regulations and the statutes administered by the 

Federal Trade Commission, including but not limited to 15 USC §45, 15 USC §52, 15 USC §55 

and 16 CFR §255.1. 

Thirty-first Affirmative Defenses 

Any oral warranties upon which Plaintiffs allegedly relied are inadmissible and waivable 

as a result of the applicable Statute of Frauds, as provided in UCC 2-201. 

Thirty-second Affirmative Defenses 
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Plaintiffs’ damages, all of which are vehemently denied, are barred by the economic loss 

rule. 

Thirty-third Affirmative Defenses 

Plaintiffs damages, all of which are vehemently denied, are barred by the statute of 

repose. 

WHEREFORE, Del Monte respectfully requests judgment in its favor and against 

Plaintiffs in this action, dismissing the Complaint and for such other and further relief as this 

Court deems just and proper.   

Dated: May 12, 2008     Respectfully submitted,  

_/s/  Sherril M. Colombo  

COZEN O’ CONNOR 
By: SHERRIL M. COLOMBO 
Florida Bar No. 0948799 
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